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DESCRIIB; THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

EXTERIOR: Begun in 1791 and completed in 1809, 01d Bethel Methodist Church is the
oldest Methodist church building still standing in Charleston. The church lot, pur-
chased from Thomas and Anna Bennett for one-hundred pounds sterling in 1795 was at
that time located in the extreme northwestern part of the city. In 1797, Francis
Asbury, the first Bishop of American Methodism, recorded in his journal having
"formed a plan to erect a (meeting) house in the west end of the suburbs."1 Asbury
wrote of preaching at Bethel Church five times between 1799 and 1815.

Originally located at the corner of Pitt and Calhoun Streets, the church served a
congregation of blacks and whites until the 1840s when the blacks seceded. In 1852
the frame church was moved to the western part of the church grounds where it was
used by the blacks. A new brick church, Bethel Methodist, constructed on the orig-
inal site, served an all-white congregation. 01d Bethel was again moved in 1880
when the building was given to the black congregation and was rolled across Calhoun
Street to the present site at 222 Calhoun Street.

Originally a gabled meeting-house style church, the white clapboard building has been
altered by the addition to the facade of a gabled portico supported by four fluted
corinthian columns. A central double door is flanked by single doors on either side,
and these entrances are surmounted by segmented transoms. The second floor has three
windows, eight-over-eight. Steps lead to porch which is surrounded by a wooden balus-
trade. Within the front gable is a semi-circular louver. On the rear, an educational
building of aluminum siding has been added.

Side facades are original with five windows, each twelve-over-twelve. Brick found-
ations of American bond date from 1880.

INTERIOR: Measuring 60 by 40 feet, the church was dedicated in 1798, prior to instal-
lation of the pulpit and plastering of the walls. An account of 1862, however, refers
to "galleries, lower floor, chancel, pulpit, steps and all."2

. ) . 1anuenced )
Church has galleries supported by thin fluted corinthianvcolumns. Downstairs there
are twelve pews on each side of a central aisle. Chancel area at the north end of the
church now contains a large pipe organ. Original pulpit and sounding board were prob-
ably destroyed in earthquake of 1886. Cast iron ceiling and church furniture (Victor-
ian globe lights and pews) were probably replaced following earthquake damage.

1 potts, J. Manning, Clark, ETmer T. and Payton, Jacob S. (editors) The
Journal and Letters of Francis Asbury, 1958. p. 121.

2Chreitzberg, A.M. Early Methodism in the Carolinas, 1897. p. 158.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Construction of the original meeting~house style church was planned by francis Asbury
in the 18th Century. The founding of 01d Bethel Church by both black and white mem-
bers was indicative of the Methodist Church philosophy of encouraging black rember-
ship in the church. In 1834, however, a schism developed between black and white
members. In the late 19th Century the church was given to the blacks and presently
serves an all-black congregation.

ARCHITECTURE: Originally a simple frame meeting-house, 01d Bethel Methodist Church
is the third oldest church building now standing in Charleston. Moved twice and
altered by the addition of columns and pediment, the church is a visual document of
changing styles -- from a simple meeting house to a building adorned with pediment
and corinthian columns.

BLACK HISTORY: The church, which presently serves an all-black congregation of 200,
is an architectural reminder of the significant relationship between the Methodist
church and blacks. The Methodists conducted the most extensive mission work among
blacks in the South Carolina Towcountry and Methodist ministers were persecuted for
their suspected abolitionist tendencies. Inclusion of blacks in the 01d Bethel con-
gregation applied to both slaves and free blacks, and funds to build the church were
raised by black as well as white members. In 1834 a schism arose over whether blacks
were to be restricted to sitting in the galleries. Dissension led to the expulsion
of nine black members and the withdrawal of 165 others in what was described by one
19th Century observer as "the heaviest blow Methodism ever received in Charleston."3

Members and ministers of the black congregation were active in the Methodist church
and in fields of education and politics. A black pastor of Bethel, Henry Cardozo,
served as County Auditor of Charleston County and as State Senator from Kershaw
County from 1870-1874.

3 Chreitzberg, A.M. Early Methodism in the Carolinas. 1897, p. 160.
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